STATE OF ARIZONA

Joint Legislative Budget Committee

1716 WEST ADAMS PHOENIX, ARIZONA 85007

PHONE (602) 926-5491

FAX (602) 926-5416

http://www.azleg.state.az.us/jlbc.htm

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

RUSSELL K. PEARCE CHAIRMAN 2005 ANDY BIGGS TOM BOONE MEG BURTON CAHILL PAMELA GORMAN STEVE HUFFMAN LINDA J. LOPEZ STEPHEN TULLY

JOINT LEGISLATIVE BUDGET COMMITTEE Tuesday, November 29, 2005 9:30 a.m. House Hearing Room 4

MEETING NOTICE

- Call to Order
- Approval of Minutes of October 26, 2005.
- DIRECTOR'S REPORT (if necessary).
- EXECUTIVE SESSION
 - A. Arizona Department of Administration, Risk Management Services Consideration of Proposed Settlements under Rule 14.
 - B. Annual Performance Review and Consideration of JLBC Staff Director Salary under Rule 7 and A.R.S. § 38-431.03.
- 1. DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY Quarterly Review of the Arizona Public Safety Communications Advisory Commission.

The Chairman reserves the right to set the order of the agenda. 11/21/05

People with disabilities may request accommodations such as interpreters, alternative formats, or assistance with physical accessibility. Requests for accommodations must be made with 72 hours prior notice. If you require accommodations, please contact the JLBC Office at (602) 542-5491.

ROBERT L. BURNS CHAIRMAN 2006 MARSHA ARZBERGER TIMOTHY S. BEE ROBERT CANNELL JORGE LUIS GARCIA JACK W. HARPER DEAN MARTIN JIM WARING

STATE SENATE STATE OF ARIZONA

Joint Legislative Budget Committee

1716 WEST ADAMS PHOENIX, ARIZONA 85007

PHONE (602) 926-5491

FAX (602) 926-5416

http://www.azleg.state.az.us/jlbc.htm

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

RUSSELL K. PEARCE CHAIRMAN 2005 ANDY BIGGS TOM BOONE MEG BURTON CAHILL PAMELA GORMAN STEVE HUFFMAN LINDA J. LOPEZ STEPHEN TULLY

MINUTES OF THE MEETING

JOINT LEGISLATIVE BUDGET COMMITTEE

October 26, 2005

The Chairman called the meeting to order at 9:40 a.m., Wednesday, October 26, 2005, in House Hearing Room 4. The following were present:

| Members: | Representative Pearce, Chairman | Senator Burns, Vice-Chairman |
|----------|---------------------------------|------------------------------|
| | Representative Biggs | Senator Arzberger |
| | Representative Boone | Senator Bee |
| | Representative Burton Cahill | Senator Cannell |
| | Representative Gorman | Senator Garcia |
| | Representative Huffman | Senator Harper |
| | Representative Lopez | Senator Martin |
| | | Senator Waring |

Absent: Representative Tully

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

<u>Representative Pearce moved</u> that the Committee approve the minutes of September 28, 2005. The motion carried.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

Senator Burns moved that the Committee go into Executive Session. The motion carried.

At 9:41 a.m. the Joint Legislative Budget Committee went into Executive Session.

Senator Burns moved that the Committee reconvene into open session. The motion carried.

At 11:20 a.m. the Committee reconvened into open session.

<u>Senator Burns moved</u> that the Committee approve the recommended settlement proposal by the Attorney General's Office in the case of Bond v. State of Arizona. The motion carried.

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION (ADOA) – Review of Risk Management Deductible.

Mr. Tyler Palmer, JLBC Staff, said the deductible amounts are reviewed annually by the Committee. ADOA is not recommending any change from the \$10,000 deductible.

Representative Pearce asked if they have ever assessed the deductible against the Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT).

STATE SENATE

ROBERT L. BURNS CHAIRMAN 2006 MARSHA ARZBERGER TIMOTHY S. BEE ROBERT CANNELL JORGE LUIS GARCIA JACK W. HARPER DEAN MARTIN JIM WARING Mr. Palmer said that during FY 2005, ADOA planned to assess a deductible against ADOT resulting from a case related to inadequate highway maintenance. However, ADOT avoided being assessed a deductible by submitting an accepted Agency Response regarding its maintenance program.

Representative Pearce asked if there was an explanation for the deductible being waived.

<u>Mr. Ray DiCiccio, State Risk Manager, ADOA</u>, said they have always used the deductible as incentive for all the agencies to minimize risks.

Representative Pearce said there have been several cases where clearly action by ADOT was needed to make a repair or improvement and it has taken months or even years to get it done and they were never assessed a deductible.

Representative Biggs said that if the deductible is never going to be enforced why have it.

Senator Martin said that it should be reversed and make the deductible automatic. The agency would then have to come before the Committee to get it waived.

<u>Senator Burns moved</u> that the Committee give a favorable review as recommended by the JLBC Staff to approve the current deductible amounts with no changes from the previous year. The motion carried.

JLBC STAFF - Consider Approval of Index for Construction Costs.

Mr. Jake Corey, JLBC Staff, said that this item was heard last month but action was deferred. He said that JLBC Staff has provided some additional information that will help the Committee regarding minimum school facilities guidelines and historical construction index data.

In response to Representative Boone, Mr. Corey said the numbers do not include a retroactive adjustment. Only projects that SFB approves in the current fiscal year can be adjusted. He said for the Bureau of Economic Analysis (BEA), a 9% retroactive amount would roughly add an additional \$20 million, and for Marshall Valuation Service (MVS) a 16.7% would roughly be \$40 million. This is just for new building construction.

Testimony was taken from parents in support of increasing the index for funding.

Representative Huffman noted that the Committee could only adjust the index on a prospective basis and not retroactive.

Representative Lopez noted that this is a crisis situation and would like legal advice on whether the Committee has the authority to take action on retroactivity and also what the Committee can do. In trying to bring the costs of the new schools down they are now taking on the appearance of a warehouse. She said it is not appropriate for children to be in that kind of environment.

Representative Pearce said that this is a review that is in statute and not a legal opinion. He said there would need to be a bill before the whole Legislature to deal with the retroactivity.

Representative Lopez said she would like to hear from the School Facilities Board (SFB) about how many schools have currently been approved.

<u>Mr. John Arnold, Acting Director, SFB</u>, said that he did not have that data but that there were 26 projects in 2005 with a total value of about \$263 million. He said he would have to provide the precise numbers. He said 5 or 6 have started construction already, with about 20 that have not yet started.

Representative Lopez asked if the Committee approved a cost increase last year.

Mr. Corey said last year the Committee approved a BEA increase of 1.4%.

Representative Burton Cahill asked how, with the schools having to strip down to the bare bones because the funding does not equal the actual cost of construction, do the schools deal with this.

Mr. Arnold said that the SFB works with square footage and the dollars that are tied to it. They meet with a school district and if they are going to build a K-6 school for 900 students, which gets 90 square feet per student, using the index they would determine how much money to award for that project. The district must produce the 90 square feet per student. If the estimate is over the formula amount, SFB looks at it to see if it is possible to be redesigned. Once SFB is satisfied that the design meets the guidelines of a new school, they would require that the district go out and bid the school. They would not allow an alternative bidding process. If the school is over budget SFB would go through their bidding process and make sure it was a fair bid. If that is the cost of the school they will award the additional cost.

In response to Senator Martin, Mr. Arnold said that what the law requires is that the state provides a minimum adequacy school. The guidelines do not speak directly to construction elements, however, a roof, windows, and doors would be included. He said in some cases carpeting might not be included.

Senator Cannell noted that if the taxpayers in a particular district are not happy with what the SFB award is they could tax themselves and build the school.

Mr. Arnold said they could always pass a bond.

Representative Pearce said that when Students First was being debated part of the original debate was that there would be no bonding because it was a response to a court order. They decided they would leave bonding for those districts that wanted to pay additional money for the items that were above what was called standard construction.

Senator Garcia asked if furring of block walls was included in the description of minimum standards.

Mr. Arnold said that furring block walls was done in order to insulate the walls. However, there have been some cases where that was determined to be beyond minimum guidelines. He said in some cases, data was presented to the SFB stating that temperature standards could not be met unless you fur the walls. That will need to be worked out and have a public discussion on it.

Representative Biggs asked if a school district can choose to bypass the SFB and build their own school.

Mr. Arnold said they can build their own school. The school is called "invisible space" and statute exempts it from the SFB formula. When the SFB examines a district to determine if new space is needed the invisible space does not show up.

Representative Boone noted that when SFB gives additional money above the square footage, they require the school district to do a hard bid to justify the additional expense. He said he wanted to publicly ask the SFB to take a look at the qualified select bidders list, which would eliminate taking a low bid from someone who may not be qualified for the job. He also asked Mr. Arnold which index more accurately reflects construction costs and inflation.

Mr. Arnold said that the BEA index is a national index and the MVS index is published with data specific to Phoenix. He said the MVS index would probably be more accurate for the Phoenix area.

Mr. Corey said that with any index you will see some negatives as well as positives. The BEA measures government activity and is nationwide. The MVS is local but only local to Phoenix so it potentially does not show what is happening in the whole state. It is a more specific index so there is more chance for it to fluctuate from year to year.

Mr. Richard Stavneak, Director, JLBC Staff, said that the choice between BEA and MVS is really a policy choice.

In response to Representative Boone, Mr. Corey said with the \$70 million in building renewal that was funded in FY 2006, the formula actually generated \$130 million: it would increase by \$11.7 million for 9% and \$21.7 million for 16.7%.

<u>Mr. Jim Drake, Attorney, House Rules</u>, said, in response to Representative Lopez's request for a legal opinion on the retroactive adjustment, that statutory law does not allow the Committee to "tweek" a retroactive adjustment. He agreed that it may be an issue for next session.

Senator Bee asked what constitutes a project moving forward and how many projects are moving forward.

Mr. Corey said that any projects that have been submitted to SFB but have not been approved to date would be considered moving forward.

Mr. Arnold said he does not know how many projects have been submitted but he would find out.

Senator Burns asked if a district submits a plan, is there a provision that allows the district to withdraw that plan and then resubmit.

Mr. Arnold said the statute requires that districts submit their capital plan by September 1 and then SFB has 6 months to address those plans. He said the board adopted a policy that does allow for cancellation of a project. However, the application is fairly narrow and that policy is for projects that were mistakenly approved. Projects are approved based on a 2-year projection. The projection shows the growth in the district. However, approximately 1 year later when it is time to build the school, SFB looks at the district's growth and if they have not met the growth, SFB will put the project on hold until they grow into the school. SFB allows districts at that point, to request cancellation of the project. The policy states they cannot request a cancellation and resubmittal of the project in the same year.

Senator Waring asked if you pick option 2 in the JLBC recommendation letter of 6.4% then all projects going forward starting today would get 6.4%, but if someone ran a bill next session to do the retroactive, they could also be in line for that too.

Mr. Arnold said if the board adopts 6.5% then every project initially approved but slated to go forward from this point would receive the 6.5%.

Representative Pearce said the 6.5%, or whatever is approved, would not apply to retroactive projects, it would only allow the others to be brought up to that amount.

Representative Boone asked if a district could come back to SFB and show that they cannot build a school at that cost if they had initial approval prior to today. He thought the SFB had flexibility to do that.

Mr. Arnold said that if the district goes through that process and says they have a school they cannot build within the square footage formula the SFB is required to build a minimum school regardless of the cost.

Mr. Arnold said that the Attorney General issued an opinion last year and it carefully lays out how SFB approves schools, including when inflation is appropriate.

<u>Senator Burns moved</u> that the Committee approve a 9% increase in the cost-per-square-foot factors using the new School Facilities and Building renewal formulas. For new construction the adjustment will apply to any future projects that received their initial approval to the design phase on or after October 26.

<u>Senator Garcia made</u> a substitute motion that the Committee approve a 12% increase in the cost-per-square-foot factors using the new School Facilities and Building renewal formulas. For new construction the adjustment will apply to any future projects that received their initial approval to the design phase on or after October 26.

Senator Waring asked what the percentage difference is in dollars.

Mr. Corey said that the first motion of 9% would cost about \$20 million per new construction, and the 12% would cost \$27 million.

The Garcia substitute motion failed.

Representative Boone stated that he wanted to make a substitute motion because of the difference between BEA and the MVS index. One is on the high side and one is on the low side. The testimony, both by the JLBC Staff and the SFB, indicates that a more accurate figure for the index should probably be somewhere between the 2. Exactly half of the difference between the 2 would be 12.85% and would be an additional \$8.5 million for construction costs. It will not affect building renewal for this year or for 2007.

<u>Representative Boone made</u> a substitute motion that the Committee approve a 12.85% increase in the cost-persquare-foot factors. For new construction the adjustment will apply to any future projects that received their initial approval to the design phase on or after October 26.

Representative Pearce said the Committee could revisit this issue as frequently as necessary if they find their numbers are not adequate.

Representative Huffman said that the Committee is trying to solve a puzzle with 1 small piece of the puzzle. There are clearly layers and layers of problems in terms of statutory authority, decisions that the SFB is making, and it is a classic case of a state bureaucracy trying to make some local decisions and the tools that are available are not exactly what is needed to deal with this specific issue. He said Representative Boone's substitute motion seemed reasonable.

Representative Pearce said staff has worked on this problem and has come up with a number that is fair based on their research and he did not want to move on using another number that they have not worked on. If they find they need to revisit this to make an adjustment it can be done at a future meeting.

Representative Huffman said that with BEA and MVS being different they are best-guessing at what will work the best for the SFB and the school districts and for a number of reasons construction costs have been greatly affected.

Representative Boone said he did not want to have to come back and revisit this issue next year.

The Boone substitute motion carried.

ARIZONA BOARD OF REGENTS (ABOR) - Review of FY 2006 Tuition Revenues.

Ms. Amy Strauss, JLBC Staff, said that this item is a request for review of their expenditure plan for tuition revenue amounts greater than the amounts appropriated by the Legislature. Footnotes for ASU, NAU and the UofA in the FY 2006 General Appropriation Act appropriate all tuition collections for operating expenditures, capital outlay, and fixed charges and mandate the Committee's review. At the September 28, 2005 JLBC meeting, the Committee did not take action on this item until the universities could provide additional information related to financial aid allocations, Alumni Association funding, and tuition collections from first-year and continuing students. JLBC Staff has included this information in the agenda book.

In response to Senator Martin, Mr. Stavneak said the circumstance exists where the university raises tuition, they then decide how much they are going to keep in their non-appropriated portion. Typically, financial aid is funded from the non-appropriated portion. Then whatever is left after they make that decision ends up in their appropriated budget. There is a footnote in the General Appropriation Act that says appropriated money cannot be spent on scholarships.

Senator Burns asked how ABOR decides as to how much is appropriated or non-appropriated.

<u>Mr. Mark Denke, ABOR Assistant Executive Director for Academic and Student Affairs</u>, said each institution decides for itself and makes recommendations to the board for approval of what their needs are in terms of revenues and financial aid. The board requires an institution to set aside at least 14% of their tuition revenue for financial aid.

Representative Pearce said that if the state does not give the institution enough money then the tuition revenue is redirected to take care of the things that ABOR thinks the university should have.

Mr. Denke said the state appropriation has a direct impact on the setting of tuition as well as applications for financial aid.

Senator Burns asked what kind of tracking is taking place relative to students that receive financial aid. He said it has been brought to his attention that there may or may not be a rather significant failure rate of some of the students on financial aid.

Mr. Denke said they do have accountability reports that they require from the institutions.

Representative Pearce said he would like information on how many students who get financial aid drop out and how many graduate.

Senator Burns said he would like that information for all 3 universities available to the Committee. He would like actual numbers of students as opposed to percentages.

<u>Mr. Jim Rund, Vice President for Undergraduate Initiatives, Arizona State University</u>, said they have tracked those success rates and they are at or above the all-student average.

Senator Waring said that the all-student average is very low and the graduation rate in Arizona needs to be higher.

Mr. Rund said that there is national data that speaks to the issue of financial support and its success. There is a direct correlation between the level of institutional need-base financial aid and the college success rate. They have seen their success rates increase.

Representative Pearce said there has been a 70% increase in tuition in a very short period of time. He has a concern that middle class students are being forced out by these tuition increases. He asked how many students is a needs-based versus those with scholarships or subsidy for their education.

In response to Senator Martin, Mr. Rund said that 14% is the standard ABOR set to be used for assistance in tuition.

<u>Mr. Rick Crock, Assistant Vice President for Enrollment and Research, University of Arizona,</u> said they do track students who receive financial aid and are concerned with increasing the attrition rate. If they are receiving a merit aid award they have to maintain a certain GPA, basically a B average. A lot of the merit-based aid goes to students who have demonstrated financial needs.

Senator Waring asked what would be a good percentage of students on financial aid graduating.

Mr. Crock said some institutions have graduation rates of around 90%. Those institutions have many students with a 4.0 GPA. But institutions where there is wider access such as theirs, they have a rate of 57% and they think they can get it into the 70s.

Senator Burns asked if UofA would also provide tracking data on students receiving financial aid.

Mr. Crock said they would provide that data.

Senator Martin said that in total 31.73% went to financial aid and asked what happened to the other dollars collected from tuition. He noted that it does not look like all the money raised for financial aid is going to financial aid.

Senator Burns said one connection he cannot make is that tuition money is used to support the Alumni Association. He said it does not make sense to use tuition money for that purpose.

Senator Cannell said he agreed with Senator Burns with the exception that if the Alumni activity brings in a lot of money to the university it would make sense to allow that.

<u>Mr. Scott Smith, Arizona State University</u>, wanted Mr. Rund to elaborate on the things they are doing for undergraduates to improve retention and ultimately graduation rates.

Mr. Rund said that it is the desire of ASU, and he believes with the other 2 universities, to rely more heavily on their development efforts to shift the burden of financial aid to relieve the impact on tuition. The university president did

remark at a private fund raising effort that \$150 million is benchmarked from private sources to reduce the amount of tuition that is needed. In respect to performance, the goals are to improve the quality of learning in the classroom, to increase the level of academic support for all their students. They have seen marked improvement in success rates from these efforts. There is no question that demographics has an impact in a comparative way on their success rate.

Mr. Smith said that the Alumni Association has an advocacy roll on behalf of the university. Those efforts are funded out of private contributions that are made to the Alumni Association or revenues that they generate. No public monies are dedicated for those purposes.

Senator Harper said he suggests that they keep their Alumni Association 501C3 and the 501C4 separate because he believes that is a clear violation of law to co-mingle those funds.

<u>Senator Burns moved</u> that the Committee give a favorable review to the expenditure plan for tuition revenue amounts greater than the amounts appropriated by the Legislature. The Committee further recommended that the universities do not use tuition revenues in support of their alumni associations. The motion carried.

Chairman Pearce adjourned the meeting at 1:10 p.m.

Respectfully submitted:

Cheryl Kestner, Secretary

Richard Stavneak, Director

Representative Russell Pearce, Chairman

STATE OF ARIZONA

Joint Legislative Budget Committee

1716 WEST ADAMS PHOENIX, ARIZONA 85007

PHONE (602) 926-5491

FAX (602) 926-5416

http://www.azleg.state.az.us/jlbc.htm

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

RUSSELL K. PEARCE CHAIRMAN 2005 ANDY BIGGS TOM BOONE MEG BURTON CAHILL PAMELA GORMAN STEVE HUFFMAN LINDA J. LOPEZ STEPHEN TULLY

| DATE: | November 17, 2005 |
|----------|---|
| TO: | Representative Russell Pearce, Chairman Members, Joint Legislative Budget Committee |
| THRU: | Richard Stavneak, Director |
| FROM: | Martin Lorenzo, Assistant Fiscal Analyst |
| SUBJECT: | Department of Public Safety – Quarterly Review of the Arizona Public Safety Communication Advisory Commission (PSCC) |

Request

Pursuant to Laws 2004, Chapter 281 the Department of Public Safety (DPS) has submitted for review, their FY 2006 first quarter expenditures and progress for the statewide interoperability design project.

Recommendation

The JLBC recommends that the Committee give a favorable review of the request. First quarter expenditures totaled \$160,200 of nearly \$4.3 million in available funding. A telecommunication engineer position was filled bringing the total staff to 6 of 9 positions. The PSCC continues to meet with stakeholders and is working with various entities on interoperability issues as well as showing progress relative to the tasks identified on their updated timeline.

Analysis

Background & Activities

The PSCC was established to develop a standard based system that provides interoperability between public safety communications systems statewide. Radio interoperability allows public safety personnel from one agency to communicate, via mobile radio, with personnel from other agencies. An interoperable system enhances the ability of various public safety agencies to coordinate their actions in the event of a large-scale emergency as well as daily emergencies. Construction costs of a statewide interoperability communication system have been estimated to be as high as \$300 million. A timeline developed by PSCC targets the establishment of a financing and development plan for the system by July 2008.

ROBERT L. BURNS CHAIRMAN 2006 MARSHA ARZBERGER TIMOTHY S. BEE ROBERT CANNELL JORGE LUIS GARCIA JACK W. HARPER DEAN MARTIN JIM WARING

STATE

SENATE

- The approval of the Concept of Operations report which was developed to be the initial planning document that can be updated and revised as the project progresses
- Reviewed the MACRO report which includes historical analysis completed by a private vendor on issues relating to interoperability in the state
- Establishment of minimum equipment standards for mobile and portable radio equipment
- The creation of a mutual aid channel-naming convention to eliminate anticipated problems during critical incidents
- Review of the Arizona 15-county project including the need for additional tower sites and current equipment inventory

Additionally, the Statewide Interoperability Executive Committee (SIEC), a subcommittee of the PSCC, has begun the process of developing policies and procedures for first responders and anticipates them being available in time for the deployment of the Arizona Emergency Radio System (AERS) pilot project, the "short-term" interoperability solution.

During the Committee's last review of this item, it requested information on the Department of Emergency and Military Affairs (DEMA) "short-term" interoperability solution, a program in which the PSCC is providing technical oversight and direction. As a result, the PSCC and DEMA have engineered a pilot project using AERS and anticipate deployment in Coconino County in late 2005. Additionally, the PSCC has provided the following information relating to the AERS project:

- DEMA is funding the "short-term" solution and will repair and expand AERS (JLBC Staff has requested additional information on the financing plan)
- When completed, AERS will increase the number of communications sites from 15 to nearly 50, achieving near statewide coverage
- Because agencies currently use a variety of communication equipment and channels that are not compatible and have limited capacity, AERS is not intended to be a long-term solution
- Will integrate to the extent possible, VHF, UHF and 700/800 MHz mutual aid channels
- Enhances, when possible, the use of currently available systems and technologies

Expenditures

Laws 2004, Chapter 275 appropriated \$5 million from the General Fund (of which \$2 million was lapsing) to DPS in FY 2005 for design costs of a statewide radio interoperability communication system. Of this amount, approximately \$1.5 million reverted back to the General Fund and \$3,000,000 is available in FY 2006 for expenditure. Laws 2005, Chapter 286 (General Appropriation Act) appropriated an additional \$1,258,100 from the General Fund to DPS for the PSCC through the Statewide Interoperability Special Line Item for a total of \$4,258,100 in available monies for expenditure in FY 2006.

In the first quarter, the PSCC filled 1 of 3 anticipated telecommunication engineer positions and expended approximately \$160,200. To date, the PSCC has filled 6 of 9 positions (2 telecommunication engineer positions and the technical writer position remain unfilled). First quarter expenditures primarily funded costs associated with the 6 staff positions including: Personal Services and Employee Related Expenditures (\$109,500), lease payment (\$31,100) and risk management premiums (\$10,800). *Table 1* indicates FY 2006 monies available for expenditure and first quarter expenditures.

| Table 1 | | | | | | |
|---|----------------------|---------------------|--|--|--|--|
| PSCC Appropriation & Expenditures | | | | | | |
| FY 2006 1 st Quart | | | | | | |
| | Appropriation | Expenditures | | | | |
| Personal Services | \$ 672,500 | \$ 95,300 | | | | |
| Employee Related Expenditures | 218,000 | 14,200 | | | | |
| Professional & Outside Services | $3,000,000^{1/2}$ | - | | | | |
| Travel - In State | 41,400 | 100 | | | | |
| Travel - Out of State | 26,600 | 1,500 | | | | |
| Other Operating Expenditures | 299,600 | 45,800 | | | | |
| Equipment | <u> </u> | 3,300 | | | | |
| Total Operating Expenditures | \$4,258,100 | \$160,200 | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| 1/ The additional \$3 million in non-lapsing monies are included in the | | | | | | |
| Professional & Outside Services line. | | | | | | |

RS/ML:ym

The following project plan conveys the major components of the short- and long-term strategies for achieving statewide interoperability in the State of Arizona. Through execution of this plan, the State can address the critical communications issues facing public safety and realize the vision for radio interoperability shared by the PSCC and the State of Arizona.

| Figure 2. Arizona State | wide Interoperability Project Plan |
|-------------------------|------------------------------------|
|-------------------------|------------------------------------|



20

consulting

Engagement: 220847450 For internal use of Arizona Public Safety Communications Commission (PSCC) only. Gartner is a trademark of Gartner, Inc. or its affiliates. © 2005 Gartner, Inc. and/or its affiliates. All rights reserved. 26 October 2005 — Page 5

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY

2102 WEST ENCANTO BLVD. P.O. BOX 6638 PHOENIX, ARIZONA 85005-6638 (602) 223 - 2000



JANET NAPOLITANO GOVERNOR ROGER VANDERPOOL DIRECTOR

November 4, 2005



Mr. Richard Stavneak, Director Joint Legislative Budget Committee 1716 West Adams Phoenix, AZ 85007

Dear Mr. Stavneak:

The Arizona Public Safety Communications Advisory Commission (PSCC) is pleased to enclose our 1st quarter report due to JLBC by November 1, 2005.

Attached is a narrative of our activities, expenditure report for the reporting period of July 1, 2005 through September 30, 2005, along with a copy of our Concept of Operations document.

If we can answer any questions or assist you or your staff in any manner, please contact Mr. Curt Knight, Executive Director, PSCC at (602) 271-7400.

Sincerely,

Roge Z. Handbyper

Roger Vanderpool Director

ds

Attachments

Staffing:

The PSCC support office with the assistance of the Department of Public Safety (DPS) Human Resources Bureau has filled one of the Telecommunications Engineer positions. Our newest employee is Mr. M. Wayne Kincheloe who started on October 3, 2005, and brings with him extensive experience in the telecommunications field.

PSCC Activities:

In July, Mr. Curt Knight worked with our consultants Gartner Group, Inc., on finalizing the draft copy of the PSCC Concept of Operations document and made a presentation to the Arizona Association of Chiefs of Police on the activities of the PSCC, our Concept of Operations document, as well as the Arizona Emergency Radio System (AERS) deployment and the need for policy and procedures to be put in place regardless of the technology solutions currently in use. Mr. Knight continued to work with SAFECOM and its practitioners work group, via conference calls, and worked with the Arizona Office of Homeland Security (OHS) in reviewing their State Homeland Security Strategy (SHSS).

In the month of July, Mr. Kevin Rogers met with the engineering staff of the Phoenix Fire Department to review the state of Arizona's 700 MHz plan. He attended a Chief's and Sheriff's meeting in Flagstaff to discuss and update attendees on the interoperability efforts being made in Arizona, and attended an overview presentation conducted by Graham and Greenlee counties on their joint efforts to build an interoperability system. Mr. Rogers was also invited to attend a meeting being held by the Department of Justice to discuss their efforts in developing an interoperability solution in the Phoenix area, and attended meetings scheduled by equipment vendors Motorola and MA/COMM regarding their new product releases as they pertain to interoperability.

In August, Mr. Knight, Mr. Rogers and Ms. Georgene Ramming visited and reviewed the operations of a DPS remote communications site with Mr. Martin Lorenzo, Joint Legislative Budget Committee (JLBC) analyst, to give him a better understanding and respect of the intricacies of remote communications installations, microwave systems and an overall broader concept of what it will take to achieve interoperability in Arizona. Mr. Knight was asked to make a presentation on the Concept of Operations document to officials at the Public Safety and Tribal Telecommunications conference in Prescott, and continues to meet with the Homeland Security Regional Advisory Councils (RACs) as regularly as possible, in an effort to assist them in the evaluation and future understanding of the needs statewide for communication projects funded through OHS. Mr. Knight along with Mr. Rogers traveled to Denver, Colorado to attend the Association of Public Safety Communications Officials International (APCO) annual conference on homeland security and interoperability.

In August, Mr. Rogers met with Mr. Mark Schroeder, Chairman of the Region 3, 700 MHz planning committee to conduct a final review of Arizona's 700 MHz regional licensing plan, traveled to Towers Mountain with DPS personnel to review the building and microwave needs at that site, and met with representatives from the Coconino County Sheriff's Office to discuss

1

involving their agency for the AERS pilot project. Meetings were also held with personnel from the Arizona Division of Emergency Management Agency (DEMA) and their vendor RCC Consultants to discuss engineering plans for the AERS interoperability project. Mr. Rogers met with personnel from the Bureau of Indian Affairs and their support contractor to discuss interoperability issues on tribal lands in northwestern Arizona, traveled to Yavapai County to meet with officials from the Sheriff's office to discuss issues and needs regarding the AERS project and he attended a 700 MHz regional planning meeting where the members voted to accept the current plan and submit it to the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) for approval.

In September, Mr. Knight traveled to Laughlin, Nevada to the Arizona Sheriff's Association meeting and made a presentation to their members on the activities of the PSCC and discussed with them the Concept of Operations document. Mr. Knight also attended a meeting at the State Capitol to make a presentation to the Governor's staff and staff of the Office of Strategic Planning and Budgeting (OSPB) on interoperability, the Concept of Operations document, and future direction of the PSCC.

In September, Mr. Rogers attended a DPS Operational Communications Bureau (Op-Comm) supervisors meeting to discuss interoperability efforts, and attended a presentation by iXP Consulting regarding project management and methodology in building large scale communications systems. Mr. Rogers met with representatives from Sedona Fire and Central Yavapai Fire District to discuss microwave capability and shared access, attended a working group session of the Statewide Interoperability Executive Committee (SIEC) to develop an operational policy for the northern Arizona pilot project, and attended the Southern Homeland Security Planning Committee meeting to discuss upcoming projects as they relate to interoperability.

Commission Meetings:

The PSCC quarterly meeting was held on Tuesday, July 26, 2005, at the Arizona Peace Officer Standards and Training (AZPOST) facility.

Mr. Kevin Rogers made a presentation to the Commission regarding the MACRO report which answered questions for the newer Commission members and audience participants on why the report was commissioned, who paid for the report, and what type of information the report contained. Mr. Rogers also pointed out several of the recommendations made in the MACRO report have been instituted by DPS, such as the formation of the PSCC and the redeployment of the Interagency Radio System (IARS) network among others.

Mr. Paul Denvir from Gartner Group, Inc., made a final presentation to the Commission on the Concept of Operations document and asked for feedback regarding the changes made after their last presentation to the members. Discussions were held regarding the use of the term "standards-based system" which members resolved, and the Commission then voted to approve the Concept of Operations document with the understanding the Commission can revisit its contents as necessary. Chairman David Felix asked the Commission whom they would like to

see Gartner Group, Inc., make presentations to regarding the Concept of Operations document and it was suggested that JLBC be one of those groups. Discussions where held regarding other groups but no formal vote was taken.

Mr. Tony Busam with DEMA's consultants made a presentation to the Commission regarding work on the 15-county project. A project overview was provided touching on the need for additional tower sites, discussion of interviews and inventory of each county, a request for continued support from the PSCC support office.

SIEC Co-Chairman Captain Paul Wilson gave a short briefing on the activities of the SIEC meeting held that morning and asked the Commission to take some action to formalize the structure of the SIEC. The Commission voted to accept the structure of the SIEC voting board as a five-member panel consisting of one representative from the following areas: Fire, Police, Emergency Medical Services (EMS), a DPS technical representative, and a member from the Division of Emergency and Military Affairs (DEMA). Two members of the voting board will be appointed by the PSCC to serve as co-chairman of the SIEC while the other three positions will be filled as needed by the co-chairman.

Budget:

First quarter expenditures for FY06 totaled \$159,277.77, with the largest expenditures being salary, employee related expenses, our building lease, DOA Risk Management premium for the year, and supply costs. The DPS Comptroller's Office has informed the PSCC that the estimations for our indirect costs for the year will be around the same as last year, which was approx \$77,700.00. We have encumbered the indirect cost amount on our spreadsheets internally, so the funding will be available at the end of the year. The Gartner Group, Inc., contract has a balance owed in the amount of \$25,000.00 which will be paid once the final two Concept of Operations presentations have been made.

PSCC Support to DEMA:

The PSCC support office is providing technical oversight and direction to the Arizona Department of Emergency and Military Affairs (DEMA) who has funded a program to replace, repair, and expand the Arizona Emergency Radio System (AERS) – formerly the Interagency Radio System (IARS). Improving upon the original IARS single-radio channel concept, the AERS design will take advantage of additional mutual aid channels to improve interoperability and mutual aid operations. The AERS project will ultimately expand the number of remote communication sites from 15 to nearly 50 locations, providing near statewide coverage with an infrastructure based interoperable platform between VHF, UHF and 700/800 MHz mutual aid radio channels. The PSCC support office and the DEMA consultant have engineered a Proof of Concept pilot project for deployment in Coconino County in late 2005. Full deployment will continue after the pilot with the intent to provide an enhanced communication resource for the TOPOFF 4 emergency planning exercise scheduled for May 2007.

The Department of Public Safety's communications sites and microwave infrastructure are recognized as key elements to improve short-term interoperability through the DEMA project. The ability to connect AERS to regional public safety dispatch centers throughout the state, thereby supporting and supervising mutual aid operations will be critical to its ability to effectively improve interoperability between jurisdictions and disciplines. On a short-term basis, AERS will enhance the use of currently available systems and technologies, but is not designed to serve as a comprehensive public safety communications solution.

Concept of Operations:

Early Implementation - Standard Procedures: Lack of standardized procedures and policies have been identified as a critical issue in many after-action reports for critical incidents across the country. The Statewide Interoperability Executive Committee (SIEC), a subcommittee of the PSCC, is drafting policies and procedures for first-responder agencies. They will be completed in time to allow implementation and training as part of the AERS pilot project.

The PSCC support office has recently completed minimum equipment standards for mobile and portable radio equipment. In addition, a common mutual aid channel-naming convention has been established to eliminate common communication problems during critical incidents.

Next Steps: The PSCC will use the Concept of Operations report as the basis for future actions. A full copy of PSCC's Concept of Operations document is included as an attachment to this quarterly report. Over the next several months, efforts will focus on actively directing the AERS project as the short-term mutual aid interoperability solution, while concurrently pursuing long-term solutions that most accurately support the PSCC's Concept of Operations.

Although many of the ongoing efforts to address operational changes can be achieved through partnerships and cooperation, the replacement and expansion of the current state microwave system is by far the most expensive enhancement identified in the Concept of Operations report. Because the microwave system is the backbone for any short- and long-term solutions, the PSCC will continue to investigate funding options for the future.

| JECT | | | | | |
|--------------|--|--|--------|------------------------|-----------|
| ODE | DATE VENDOR | | | EXPENDED | SUB-TOTAL |
| | PERSONAL SERVICES | | ¢ | 12 095 10 | |
| 6011 | 7/6/2005 SALARY | | \$ | 13,085.10 13,439.30 | |
| 6011 | 7/20/2005 SALARY | | \$ | | |
| 6011 | | | \$ | 13,439.30 | |
| 6011 | 8/17/2005 SALARY | | \$ | 13,454.14 | |
| 6011 | | | \$ | 13,961.33 | |
| 6011 | 9/16/2005 SALARY | TRANSF - DOBRAS TO PSCC SALARY | \$ | 65.25 | |
| 6011 | 9/14/2005 SALARY | | \$ | 13,439.33 | |
| 6011 | 9/14/2005 SALARY | | \$ | 14,408.32 | |
| 6011 | | | | | |
| | | | | \$95,292.07 | \$95,29 |
| 6100 | EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPENSES | | \$ | 1.822.93 | |
| 6100 | | | \$ | 2,032.58 | |
| 6100 | | | | 2,032.57 | |
| 6100 | | | \$ | | |
| 6100 | | | \$ | 2,032.59 | |
| 6100 | | | \$ | 2,084.04 | |
| 6100 | 9/16/2005 ERE | TRANSF - DOBRAS TO PSCC SALARY | \$ | 6.43 | |
| 6100 | 9/14/2005 ERE | | \$ | 2,026.76 | |
| 6100 6100 | | | \$ | 2,128.13 | |
| | | | | \$14,166.03 | \$14,16 |
| | PROFESSIONAL/OUTSIDE SERVICES | | | | |
| | | | | \$0.00 | s |
| CEAA | TRAVEL IN-STATE | TRAVEL REIMB | \$ | 22.50 | |
| 6541 | | | э S | | |
| 6500 | 9/15/2005 CURT KNIGHT | TRAVEL REIMB | 2 | 72.20 | |
| | | | | \$94.70 | \$1 |
| 6600 | TRAVEL OUT-OF-STATE | TRAVEL REIMB | \$ | 726.00 | |
| 6600 | | TRAVEL REIMB | 9 69 | 803.25 | |
| | | | | \$1,529.25 | \$1,52 |
| 6800 | AID TO OTHER ORGAINZATIONS | | | | |
| | | | | \$0.00 | 5 |
| | OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES | | | | |
| 7111 | 8/4/2005 DOA RISK MANAGEMENT PREMIUM | SEE COMPTROLLER FOR PPRWRK | \$ | 10,842.00 | |
| | | 이 같이 많은 집에 앉아 있는 것이 하지 않는 것이 없는 것이 없는 것이 없다. | | \$10,842.00 | \$10,84 |
| 7179 | | CELL PHONE BILLS | | | |
| 7179 | | CELL PHONE BILLS | | | |
| 7179 | | CELL PHONE BILLS | \$ | 73.52 | |
| 7179 | 9 7/27/2005 ALLTEL COMMUNICATIONS | CELL PHONE BILLS | \$ | 93.35 | |
| 7179 | 8/1/2005 VERIZON WIRELESS | CELL PHONE BILLS | \$ | 44.41 | |
| 7179 | 8/24/2005 ALLTEL COMMUNICATIONS | CELL PHONE BILLS | \$ | 90.23 | |
| 7179 | 8/29/2005 VERIZON WIRELESS | CELL PHONE BILLS | \$ | 44.41 | |
| 7179 | 9/28/2005 VERIZON WIRELESS | CELL PHONE BILLS | \$ | 44.41 | |
| 7179 | | CELL PHONE BILLS | \$ | 90.23 | |
| 7004 | | A VEAD LEASE DAVAENT | ¢ | \$480.56 | \$4 |
| 7221 | 1 7/14/2005 TOP 10 PROPERTIES | 1 YEAR LEASE PAYMENT | \$ | 31,142.04 | |
| 7227 | | | | \$31,142.04 | \$31,1 |
| | | | | \$0.00 | |
| 7229 | 9 7/8/2005 PUEBLO GRANDE MUSEUM | ROOM RESERVATION FEE | \$ | 40.00 | |
| 7251 | | | | \$40.00 | \$ |
| | | | | \$0.00 | |
| 7256 | 5 | | | | |
| 7263 | | | | \$0.00 | |
| | 3 7/19/2005 IKON IT SOURCE C/O WORLD WIDE TE | CH KINSTON 512MB MEMORY | \$ | 93.97 | |

| 7266 | 8/1/2005 DANKA OFFICE IMAGING | COPIER MAINT AGREEMENT | \$ | \$93.97 75.00 | \$93.97 |
|--------------|--|---|--|-------------------------|------------|
| 7269 | | | | \$75.00 | \$75.00 |
| 7203 | | | | \$0.00 | \$0.00 |
| 7311 | | | | | |
| | | | | \$0.00 | \$0.00 |
| 7321 | 7/27/2005 AMERICAN EXPRESS | CHARGES | \$ | 54.43 | |
| 7321 | 7/27/2005 AMERICAN EXPRESS | CHARGES | \$ | 934.95 | |
| 7321 | 7/27/2005 AMERICAN EXPRESS | CHARGES | \$ | 402.27 | |
| 7321 | 8/24/2005 AMERICAN EXPRESS | CHARGES | \$ | 795.05 | |
| 7361 | 9/30/2005 REIMB DPS - FUEL | REIMBURSEMENT | \$ | \$2,186.70 249.79 | \$2,186.70 |
| 7501 | 3/30/2003 REIND DI G 1 OLL | | | | 6040 70 |
| 7374 | | | | \$249.79 | \$249.79 |
| | | | | \$0.00 | \$0.00 |
| 7381 | | | | | |
| | | | | \$0.00 | \$0.00 |
| 7455 | | | | | |
| | | | iere en la | \$0.00 | \$0.00 |
| 7461 | 7/19/2005 PRIMEDIA BUSINESS MAG & MEDIA | TELECOM ENGINEER AD | \$ | 237.50 | |
| 7461 | 7/25/2005 PANDATA CORP | TELECOM ENGINEER AD | \$ | 225.00 | |
| 7461 7461 | 10/12/2005 ARIZONA DAILY SUN | TELECOM ENGINEER AD | \$ | 217.50 | |
| 7470 | | | | \$680.00 | \$680.00 |
| 7472 | | | | \$0.00 | \$0.00 |
| 7476 | | | | | |
| 7481 | 9/29/2005 DPS TRANSFER | REIMB FOR POSTAGE CHGS | \$ | \$0.00 1.82 | \$0.00 |
| 7401 | 5/25/2003 DF3 TRANSFER | | Ŷ | 1.02 | |
| 7531 | | | | \$1.82 | \$1.82 |
| 7541 | | | | \$0.00 | \$0.00 |
| 1011 | | | | \$0.00 | \$0.00 |
| 7599 | 9/26/2005 DEPT OF REVENUE | TAXES | \$ | 0.78 | \$0.00 |
| | | | | \$0.78 | \$0.78 |
| 8182 | ILDING/BUILD IMPROVEMENTS | | | | |
| | | | | \$0.00 | \$0.00 |
| | N CAPITAL EQUIPMENT | | | 00.00 | 0.00 |
| 8411 | | | | | |
| 8471 | | | | \$0.00 | \$0.00 |
| 0411 | | | | \$0.00 | 00.00 |
| | PITAL EQUIPMENT | | | \$0.00 | \$0.00 |
| 8521 | 7/19/2005 WALSH BROS OFFICE ENVIRONMENT | 2 DRAWER LATERAL FILE CABINET | \$ | 257.13 | |
| 8551 | | | | \$257.13 | \$257.13 |
| | | | | \$0.00 | \$0.00 |
| 8561 | | | | | |
| | | | | \$0.00 | \$0.00 |
| 8571 | 8/24/2005 MULTIMEDIA TELESYS INC 8/24/2005 TROXELL COMM | 2 TV/VCR/DVD TV CART, SHURE WIRELESS SYS | \$ \$ | 689.81 806.44 | |
| | | | 1776 | | |
| | | | | | |

\$1,496.25 \$1,496.25

| | TOTALS | | | \$160,162.69 | \$160,162.6 |
|----------------------|--|--|-------|----------------------------|-------------|
| | | | | \$0.00 | \$0.0 |
| 9000 | DIRECT COSTS | | | | |
| | | | | \$1,534.60 | \$1,534.6 |
| 8583 8583 8583 | 7/19/2005 ASAP SOFTWARE 7/26/2005 ASAP SOFTWARE 10/25/2005 ASAP SOFTWARE | 2003 ACCESS SOFTWARE ACROBAT 7.0 PRO AUTOCAD LT 2006 | \$ \$ | 146.81 502.87 884.92 | |